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WHEREAS, Plaintiffs, the Unzted States of America {"United States"), on behalf of the

United States Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA"), and the Commonwealth of

Pennsylvania Department of Environmen#aI Protection ("PADEP") filed a Complaint in this

matter against Defendant Delaware County Regional Water Quality Control Authority,

("Defendant" or "DELCORA") seeking injunctive relief and civil penalties, and alleging, inter

alia, that DELCORA violated the Clean Water Act ("CWA"), 33 U.S.C. §§ 1251-1387, Sections

201, 202 and 40I of the Pennsylvania Clean Streams Law, 35 Pa. Stat. Ann. §§ 691.201, 691.202

and 595.401, and certain terms and conditions of the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination

System {"NPDES") permit last issued by PADEP as NPDES Permit No. PA0027103, effective

on or about May 1, 201.3 and amended on or about December 17, 2013 (effective January 1,

2014), issued to DELCORA pursuant to the CWA relating to the municipal wastewater treatment

plant and collection system owned and operated by DELCORA ("Complaint");

WHEREAS, DELCORA is a municipal authority organized under the Municipal

Authorities Act, as amended, 53 Pa. Cons. Stat. Ann. §§ 5601-5623, that owns, operates, and

maintains a publicly owned treatment works ("POTW"), which includes a wastewater treatment

plant known as the Western Regional Treatment Plant ("WRTP") and a collection system

("Collection System") that collects stormwater and wastewater from. residential., commercial, and

industrial sources. Certain portions of the Collection System are a Combined Sewer System and

other portions are a Sanitary Sewer System.. Pursuant to contractual arrangements, DELCORA

also treats wastewater at the WRTP that is collected and conveyed to the WRTP by means that

DELCORA does not own.. DELCORA is authorized to discharge pollutants from the WRTP and

Collection System in accordance with DELCORA's NPDES permit into Ridley Creek, Chester



Creek, and the Delaware River; all of which are located. within the jurisdiction of the U.S.

District Court for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania;

WHEREAS, the United States and PADEP allege that DELC~RA has violated and.

continues to violate Sections 301. and 402 of the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. §§ 1311 and 1342,

and Sections 3, 201., 202 and 401 of the Clean Streams Law, 35 Pa. Stat. Ann. §§ b91.3, 691.201,

691.202 and 691.401, by impermissibly discharging untreated sewage from the Collection

System. to Ridley Creek, Chester Creek, and the Delaware River;

WHEREAS, nothing in this Consent Decree will be construed as an admission. by

DELCORA. of violations of any provisions of the CWA, or of DELCORA's current or past

NPDES permits, or of the Clean Streams Law;

WHEREAS, the Parties recognize, and this Court by entering this Consent. Decree finds,

that this Consent Decree has been negotiated in good faifh and will avoid prolonged and

complicated litigation between the Parties, and that this Consent Decree is fair, reasonable, and

in the public interest;

NOW, THEREFORE, before the taking of any testimony, without the adjudication or

adamission of any issue of fact or law except as provided in Section I (Jurisdiction and Venue)

below, and with the consent of the Parties, it is hereby ORDERED, ADJUDGED and

DECREED as follows:

L JURISDICTION .AND VENUE

This Court has jurisdiction over the Parties and the subject matter of this action

pursuant to Section 309(b) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(b), and 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1345,

1355, and 1367. Venue is proper in this District pursuant to Section 309(b) of the CWA,

33 U.S.C. § 1319(b), and 28 U.S.C. §§ 1391(b) and 1395(a). For purposes of this Consent

Decree, or any action. to enforce this Consent Decree, Defendant consents to the Court's
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jurisdiction over this Decree and any such action and over Defendant and consents to venue in

this judicial district.

2. For purposes of this Consent Decree, Defendant agrees that the Complaint states

Maims upon which relief may be granted. pursuant to Sections 301 and 402 of the Clean Water

Act, 33 U.S.C. §§ 1311 and 1342, and Sections 3, 201, 202, 401, 601., and 605 of the Clean

Streams Law, 35 Pa. Stat. Ann. §§ 691.3, 691201, 691.202, 691..401, 691.601, and. 691.605.

II. APPLICABILITY AND BINDING EFFECT

3. This Consent Decree will apply to and be binding upon the United States, on

behalf of EPA, PADEP, and upon Defendant and its successors, assigns, and all other entities

and persons provided for in Fed. R. Civ. P. 65(d).

4. Defendant shall notify the following of the existence of this Consent Decree and

make a copy available to them: all officers, employees, and agents of DELCORA whose duties

might reasonably include compliance with any provision of this Consent Decree, as well as any

contractor retained to perform work required under this Consent Decree.

5. Effective from the Date of Lodging of this Consent Decree until its termination, in

the event that DELCORA transfers any ownership or operation of its WRTP, the Collection

System, or any portion. of the WRTP or Collection System, and includes in such transfer, the

transfer of any obligations under this Consent Decree, DELCORA will give written notice and a

copy of this Consent Decree to any successors in interest at least 30 Days prior to such transfer.

DELCORA. will condition any transfer, in whole or in part, of ownership, operation, or other

interest in the WRTP or the Collection System. upon the successful execution of the terms and

conditions of this Consent Decree. Simultaneously with notice to any successor in interest,

DELCORA will provide written notice of such transfer to the United States and PADEP as

provided in Section XVI (Notices and Submissions). In the event of any such transfer of
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ownership or other interest, DELCORA will not be released from the obligations or IiabiIities of

this Consent Decree unless: (i) the transferee has the financial and technical ability to assume

these obligations and liabilities; (ii) the United States and PADEP have agreed. to release

DELCORA from the obligations and liabilities; (iii) the United Sta#es, PADEP, and the

transferee have jointly moved. to substitute the transferee as Defendant to this Consent Decree;

and (iv) the Court has approved the substitution.

6. In any action to enfarce this Consent Decree, Defendant will not raise as a

defense the failure of its officers, directors, agents, contractors, employees, successors, assigns or

any other persons or entities provided for in Fed. R. Civ. P. 65(d} to take any actions necessary to

comply with the provisions hereof. Nothing in this Paragraph prevents the Defendant from

invoking Section XI of this Decree (Force Majeure), provided that the event meets the definition

of a Farce Majeure provided in Paragraph 66.

III. OBJECTIVES

7. The objectives of this Consent Decree are for the Defendant to take the steps

necessary to achieve full compliance with the CWA, the regulations promulgated. thereunder,

including but not. limited to 33 U.S.C. § 1342(q) and the regulations promulgated thereunder, and

the Clean Streams Law and the regulations promulgated thereunder. Ali plans, reports,

construction, remedial maintenance, and other obligations in this Consent Decree or resulting

from the activities required by this Consent Decree shall have the objective of causing Defendant

to come into and remain in full compliance with. the terms and conditions of Defendant's NPDES

Permit, the Clean Water Act, and the Clean. Streams Law, including elimination of Sanitary

Sewer Overflows, as these terms are defned in Section IV {Definitions).



I'V. DEFINITIONS

8. Unless otherwise defined herein, berms used in this Consent Decree shall have the

aneaning given to those terms in the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1251-13$7, and the regulations

promulgated thereunder, or, if not. defined in the Clean Water Act or its regulations, then as

defined in the Pennsylvania Clean Streams Law. 35 Pa. Stat. Ann. §§ 691..1-691..1001. and the

regulations promulgated thereunder. The following definitions shall apply to the terms used in

the Consent Decree:

"Building/Private Property Backup" shall mean a release of wastewater

into a building or onto private property that is caused by blockage(s), flow condition{s) or

Collection System malfunction(s). A wastewater backup ar release that is caused solety by

conditions in a Private Lateral is not a Building/Private Property Backup for purposes of this

Consent Decree.

b. "Clean Water Act'' or "CWA" shall mean the Federal Water Pollution

Control Act found at 33 U.S.C. §§ 1.251-1387, and the regulations promulgated thereunder.

c. "Collection System" shall mean the current and future municipal

wastewater collection and transmission. system owned or operated by DELCORA, including all

pipes, interceptors, force mains, gravity sewer lines, lift stations, pumping stations, manholes and

appurtenances thereto designed to collect and convey municipal sewage and wastewaters

(domestic, commercial, and industrial). "Collection System" includes both the "Combined Sewer

System'' and the "Sanitary Sewer System." The Collection System. does not include the "Eastern.

Service Area" (as depicted on Figure 1-2 of the Long-Term Control Plan submitted by

DELCORA in Apri12012, and attached. as Appendix A hereto), which consists of the Central

Delaware County Authority, the Mucknipates Authority, the Darby Creek Joint Authority, and

the Radnor-Haverford-Marple Authority, except that the Collection System does include the
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Centrat Delaware Pump Station, the Muckinapates Pump Station, the Darby Creek Pump Station.,

the Eastern force Main, the Eastern Bypass, and ali associated pipes, interceptors, force mains,

gravity sewer lies, lift. stations, pumping stations, manholes and. appurtenances thereto designed

to collect and convey municipal sewage and wastewaters (domestic, commercial, ane~ industrial).

d. "Combined Sewer Overflow Control Policy" or "CSO Control Policy"

shall mean the policy issued by EPA regarding combined sewer overflows, entitled "Combined

Sewer Overflow (CSO) Control Policy," 59 Fed. Reg. 18688 (April 19, 1.994) and as identified

in Section 402(q) of the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1342(q).

e. "Combined Sewer Overflow" or "CSO" shall mean any discharge from.

DELCORA's Combined Sewer System at a CSO Outfall designated. in the currently applicable

NPDES Permit.

f. "Combined Sewer System" shall mean the portion of DELCORA's

Collection System designed to convey municipal. sewage and wastewaters (domestic,

commercial, and industrial) and stormwater in the same system of pipes.

g. "Consent Decree" shall mean this Consent Decree, all Appendices hereto,

and. all plans, schedules, reports, memoranda, or other submittals approved by the Plaintiffs

pursuant to the requirements of this Consent Decree or any Appendix hereto. In the event of any

conflict between the Consent Decree and any Appendix, this Consent Decree shall control.

h. "CSO Control Measure" shall mean each long-term CSO control selected in

DELCORA's approved Long Term Control Plan, including but not limi#ed to the construction,

control measures, actions, and other activities set forth in DELCORA's approved Long Term Control

Plan.



i. "CSO Outfall" shall mean. an outfall in the Combined Sewer System from

which combined sewage and starmwater are discharged and so designated in the currently

applicable NPDES Permit.

"Date of Lodging" shall mean the date that this Consent Decree is lodged

with the Clerk of the Court for the United States District Court for the Eastern District of

Pennsylvania.

k. "Day" shall mean a calendar day unless expressly stated to be a working

day. When the day a report or other deliverable is due under this Consent Decree falls on a

Saturday, Sunday, federal holiday, or legal holiday for DELCORA, DELCORA shall have until

the next calendar day that is not one of the aforementioned days far submission of such report or

other deliverable.

1. "DELCORA" shall mean Defendant Delaware County Regional Water

Quality Control Authority, a municipal corporation located in Delaware County, Pennsylvania.

m. "Dry Weather Overflow" shall mean a discharge that occurs at a permitted

CSO Outfall that. is not caused byprecipitation-related Inflow or Infiltration.

n. "Eastern Bypass" means the force main that connects the Central

Delaware Pump Station to the Chester Force Main, which in turn is connected to DELCORA's

Western Regional Treatment Plant.

o. "Eastern Force Main" means the force main that connects the Central

Delaware Pump Station, l`~Iuckinipates Pump Station, and Darby Creek Pump Station to the City

of Philadelphia Water Department's Southwest Water Pollution Control Plant.

p. "Effective Date" shall mean the date set forth in Section XVII (Effective

Date) of this Consent Decree.
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q. "EPA" shall. mean the United States Environmental Protection Agency

and any successor departments or agencies of the United. States.

r. "EPS-1 Pump Station" rrteans the pump station that receives the gravity

#low from I~ELCORA's Delaware and West End Interceptors, as well as the force main from

Covanta's Chester facility, and pumps the flow to DELCORA's Western Regional Treatment

Plant.

s. "Infiltration" shall have the meaning set forth at 40 C.F.R.. § 35.2005(20).

t. "Inflow" shall have the meaning set forth. at 40 C.F.R. § 35.2005(21).

u. "Long Term Control Plan" or "LTCP" shall mean the plan that.

DELCORA develops pursuant to Section V.A.

v. "MGD" shall mean million gallons per day.

w. "NPDES Permit" shall mean the currently effective NPDES Permit No.

PA0027103, effective on or about May 1, 2013 and amended. on or about December 17, 2013

(effective January 1, 2014), issued to DELCORA by PADEP. This definition includes any

subsequent modification or reissuance of the Permit in accordance with 40 C.F.R Part 123.

x. "PADEP" shall mean the Pennsylvania Department of Environmental

Protection and any successor departments or agencies of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.

y. "Paragraph" shall mean a provision of this Consent Decree identified by

an Arabic number.

z. "Parties" shall mean the United States, PADEP, and DELCORA.

aa. "Placement. in Operation'" shall mean to operate consistently in such a

way as to achieve the level of control intended by each CSO Control Measure, even though all



construction close-out activities, such as completion of a punchlst and resolution of contract

disputes or close-outs, may not yet be completed.

bb. "Plaintiffs" shad mean the United. States and PADEP.

cc. "Private Lateral" shall mean pipes and any other appurtenances not owned

ar operated by DELCORA that are used to convey wastewater from a building or buildings to the

Collection System as defined herein.

dd. "Receiving Waters" shall mean Ridley Creek, Chester Creek, and the

Delaware River.

ee. "Sanitary Sewer System" shall mean the current and future portion of the

Collection System designed to convey municipal sewage and wastewaters (domestic,

commercial, and industrial} in one system and stormwater in a separate system..

ff. "Sanitary Sewer Overflow" or "SSO" shall mean an overflow, spill,

diversion, or release of wastewater from or caused by the Sanitary Sewer System. This term shall

include: (i) discharges to waters of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania or United States from the

Sanitary Sewer System and (ii) any release of wastewater from the Sanitary Sewer System to

public or private property that does not reach waters of the United. States or the Commonwealth

of Pennsylvania, including Building/Private Property Backups.

gg. "Section" shall mean a portion of this Consent Decree identified by an

uppercase Roman Number.

hh. "Semi-Annual Progress Report" shall mean the reports due on a semi-

annual basis under Section VII (Reporting).

ii. "Sensitive Areas" shall have the meaning set forth in Section ILC.3. of the

CSO Control Policy, and shall be determined in accordance with Paragraph i 1 hereof.
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jj. "Semi-Annual Period'" shall mean each six-month period. commencing on

either January 1, or July 1 of each calendar year.

kk. "Subparagraph" shall mean a provision of this Consent Decree identified

by one or two lowercase letters ~o~lowed immediately by a period. All Subparagraphs are

incorporated into and a part of the Paragraph immediately preceding the Subparagraph.

11. "Typical. Year" shall meant the precipitation votume, frequency, duration

and intensity determined pursuant to Paragraph 12.

mm. "Unauthorized Release" shall mean any overflow, spill, diversion, or

release of wastewater within the Combined Sewer System at a location other than a CSO Outfall.

This term shall include any release of wastewater from the Combined. Sewer System to public or

private property that does not reach waters of the Commonwealth or United States, including

Building/Private Property Backups.

nn. "Unpermitted Discharge" shall mean a Dry Weather Overflow or any

discharge to waters of the United States or the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania from the

Collection System or the WRTP at a location other than an Outfall designated in the NPDES

Permit, including Building/Private Property Backups.

oo. "Western Regional Treatment Plan" or "WRTP" shall mean the waste

water treatment plant owned and operated by DELCORA located at 3201 W. Front Street,

Chester, Pennsylvania..

V. COMPLIANCE MEASURES

A. LONG-TERM CONTROL PLAN

9. Updated Long Term Control Plan Development. By no later than three and. one

half years (42 months) after the Date of Lodging of this Consent Decree, DELCORA shall

complete and submit a revised and updated Long Term. Control Plan {"LTCP") to Plaintiffs for
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review and approval in accordance with the requirements of Section VI (Review and Approval of

submittals). The LTCP shall include, a~ a minimum, a detailed analysis and discussion of each

item described. in Paragraphs 10 through 22 hereof, and shall include proposed. schedules,

deadlines and timetables for implementing each component of the LTCP. The LTCP shall

conform to the requirements of EPA's CSO Control. Policy and EPA's "Guidance for Long-Term

Control Plan," EPA 832-8-95-002, September 1995. DELCORA shalt take into consideration

EPA's "Greening CSO Plans: Planning and Modeling Green Infrastructure for Combined Sewer

Overflow (CSO) Control," 'EPA 832-R-14-001, March 2014, in developing the LTCP. The

selected CSO controls set forth in the LTCP shall be designed to meet the following overarching

goals:

a. Bringing all CSO discharge points into full compliance with the

technology-based and water quality-based requirements of the CWA; and

b. Minimizing the impacts of CSOs an water quality, aquatic biota, and

human health.

10. Development of the updated Long Term Control Plan shall involve the following

steps, each as set forth in further detail in this Section:

a. Identification of Sensitive Areas as required by Paragraph II.C.3 of the

CSO Control Policy, and identification of pollutants of concern ("PoCs"), to be determined

consistent with EPA's "Guidance for Long-Term Control Plan," EPA 832-B-95-002, September

1995;

b. Identification of an appropriate Typical Year rainfall record;
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Coordination with EPA and PADEP to determine the approach to

Alternatives Evaluation to be used in DELCORA's Receiving Waters, as required by Paragraph

TLC.4 of the CSO Control Policy;

d. Development and implementation of a Hydrologic and Hydraulic Model

{"H&H Model"') Update and Calibration Plan;

e. Development and implementation of a Water Quality Model Plan;

f. Characterization of the service area and the Receiving Waters as required

by CSO Control. Policy Paragraph II.C1 and associated guidance;

g. Development and implementation of a Public Participation Plan in

accordance with CSO Control Policy Paragraph II.C.2 and associated guidance;

h. Development of a Financial Capability Assessment ("FCA") and an

implementation schedule for the proposed CSO controls in accordance with CSO Control Policy

Paragraph II.C.8 and "Combined Sewer Overflows —Guidance for Financial Capability

Assessment and Schedule Development," EPA 832-B-97-004, February 1997;

Alternatives Evaluation and selection of proposed CSO long term controls

as required by CSO Control Policy Paragraph II.C.4 and associated guidance;

If DELCORA's selected CSO Control Measures include wet weather

bypassing of any portion of the WRTP, development of a No Feasible Alternatives ("NFA")

Analysis in accordance with CSO Control Policy Paragraph II.G'7, 40 CFR Part 122.41(m), and

associated guidance;

k. Development and implementation of apost-construction monitoring plan

{"PCMP") in accordance with CSO Control Policy Paragraph ILC.9 and EPA's "CSO Post.

Construction Compliance Monitoring Guidance," EPA-833-K-11-001, May 2012, and
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Appropriate revision of DELCORA's collection system operation and

maintenance plan to reflect the implementation of the CSO Control Measures, as required by CSO

Control Policy Paragraph II_.C.b and associated guidance.

11. Identification of Sensitive Areas and Pollutants of Concern.. within six (6) months

after the Date of Lodging hereof, DELCORA shall submit to Plaintiffs for review and approval

in accordance with the requirements of Section VI (Review and Approval of Submittals) a report

or technical memorandum that identifies all Sensitive Areas and pollutants of concern ("PoCs")

which are impacted by CSOs and are within the Model Area (as defined in Subparagraph 14.b,

below), and for each of its Receiving Waters:

a. For each of its Receiving Waters, DELCORA shall contact appropriate

agencies, access available data sources, and collect additional data as necessary to identify

Sensitive Areas. DELCORA shall fully document all such contacts and the associated responses,

and all additional investigations carried out to identify Sensitive Areas. DELCORA shall also

identify any additional areas that, while not Sensitive Areas, have been identified by DELCORA

as being appropriate for prioritization ("Priority Areas").

b. For each of its Receiving Waters, DELCORA shall conduct community

outreach and appropriate studies to determine whether and to what extent primary contact

recreation is occurring in each Receiving Water, and shall fully document its outreach and study

methods, and its findings.

c. For each of its Receiving Waters, DELCQRA shall review existing water

quali#y data and recent PADEP CWA § 303{d) listings to identify PoCs. Even if a water body

has not been formally listed as out of compliance with its water quality standards and designated
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uses, if available data indicate such impairmen# exists and such impairment involves pollutants

associated with CSOs, DELCORA shall consider the related pollutants to be PoCs.

12. Typical Year Rainfall Record. Within ninety (90) Days after the Date of Lodging

hereof, DELCORA shall submit. to Plaintiffs for review and approval in accordance with the

requirements of Section VI (Review and Approval of submittals) a report or technical

memorandum describing DELCORA's statistical evaluation of long-term local rainfall patterns

and the identification of an appropriate Typical Year for LTCP development purposes. This

statistical evaluation shall utilize an appropriate local long-term. rainfall record, and shad

consider various appropriate rain year characteristics, including distributions of event rainfall

totals, event durations, and peak and average rainfall intensities throughout the Model Area (as

defined in Subparagraph 14.b, below).

13. Alternatives Evaluation A~proacn. V~ithin nine {9) months after tl~e Date of

Lodging hereof, DELCORA shall propose, in coordination with. EPA and PADEP and in

accordance with Section II.G4 of the CSO Control Policy, what approach to LTCP Alternative

Evaluation (i.e., Presumption or Demonstration) is appropriate for each of DELCORA's

Receiving Waters, and submit a written explanation of such determination to Plaintiffs for

review and approval pursuant to Section. VI (Review and Approval of Submittals}. Use of the

Presumption Approach will be allowed only where EPA and PADEP each agree that the specific

presumptions) to be used in a particular water body are reasonable pursuant to Section II.C.4.a

of the CSO Control Policy.

14. H d~gic and Hydraulic Model ("H&H Model"Update and Calibration Plan.

a. Not later than sixty (60) Days after the Date of Lodging of this Consent

Decree, DELCORA shall submit a detailed plan. to update, calibrate, and validate the H&H
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Model to Plaintiffs for review and approval pursuant to Section VI {Revievu and Approval of

Submittals). The plan shall. address:

(i) Model Update Methodology.

(ii) Hydrologic and Hydraulic Model Refinement.

{iii) Flow Data Assessment, and additional Rainfall and Flow

Monitoring to be Carried Out.

(iv) Dry Weather Flow Calibration, including quantitative and

qualitative calibration criteria.

(v) Wet Weather Flow Calibration, including quantitative and

qualitative calibration criteria.

(vi) Model Validation; and

(vii) Schedule for model development and implementation, including

integration into LTCP development consistent with other dates required pursuant to this Consent

Decree.

b. The updated H&H Model shall specifically include hydrologic

representation of all areas tributary to the entire Collection System, as well as all areas tributary

to all municipal wastewater collection. and transmission systems that are, as of the date the LTCP

is submitted, hydraulically connected to, or that directly or indirectly influence flow to; the CSOs

and/or the WRTP, regardless of who owns or operates the system(s), including but not limited to

the entire "Western Service Area'' and. "Eastern Service Area" depicted on Figure 1-2 of the

Long-Term Control Plan submitted by DELCORA in Apri12012, and attached as Appendix A

hereto (collectively, the "Model Area"),
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c. The H&H Model shall accurately represent the response of the Madel

Area to wet weather events, including the flows t1~at result from wet weather events to and from

D.ELCORA's CSOs and to tie WRTP. To accotr~plish this, the model shall explicitly include all

interceptors, diversion structures, CSOs, pump stations and major trunk sewers within the

Collection System, as well as such pipes and appurtenances within. the areas outside the

Collection System that are needed to ensure adequate H&H Model accuracy. The H&H Model

shall also include all sewers required for model continuity and/or that hydraulically impactor are

downstream of known chronic unpermitted releases. DELCORA shall investigate and collect

current system attribute information as necessary to update the H&H Model.

d. Rainfall and flow monitoring shall be carried out in accordance with

current good industry practice for a period of at least twelve (12) months, in accordance with the

schedule included in the approved plan. Rainfall data shall be obtained at a minimum effective

density of 1 gauge/virtual radar-based gauge per square kilometer, for the entire Model Area.

Flow monitoring shall be carried out using sufficient monitors to allow the accurate

characterization. of dry and wet weather flows from the entire Model Area, and the response of

each CSO to wet weather flows.

e. For all rainfall and flow monitoring carried out in support of efforts to

update and calibrate the H&H Model, DELCORA shall prepare and submit to Plaintiffs for

review and comment in accordance with the requirements of Section VI (Review and Approval

of Submittals) quarterly technical memoranda documenting the results and quality of the rainfall

and flow monitoring data.

£ Within 30 Days after the H&H Model is revised, calibrated, and validated

in accordance with the schedule set forth in the plan, DELCORA shall submit a Sewer System



H&H Model Report to Plaintiffs for review and approval in accordance with the requirements of

Section VI (Review and Approval of Submittals}. The Sewer System H&H Model Report shall

specifically address each item set forth in Subparagraphs 14(a){i)-(vii) hereof.

15. Water Qualit~Model Plan.

a. If DELCORA utilizes the Demonstration Approach in one or more of its

Receiving Waters, then within ninety (90) Days after EPA reviews and approves the Alternatives

Evaluation Approach pursuant to Paragraph 13 hereof and in accordance with Section II.C.4 of

the CSO Control Policy, DELCORA shall. submit to EPA and PADEP a Water Quality Model

Plan for review and approval pursuant to Section VI (Review and Approval of Submittals), and

shall implement the approved Water Quality Model Plan in accordance with the schedule

included therein.. For each water body in which the Demonstration Approach is to be used, the

Water Quality Model Plan sha11 address:

{i) Background, Scope and Purpose, Description of System;

(ii) Water quality modeling software to be employed;

(iii) Model configuration and development, including reaches to be

modeled, and segmentation and boundary conditions;

(iv) Calibration and validation (dry weather and wet weather,

including events and data to be employed, detailed information regarding all additional data

collection activities {if needed), quantitative and qualitative calibration criteria, and utilization of

H&H .Model outputs;

(v) Use of the Water Quality Model to evaluate Typical Year in-

stream conditions for each identified pollutant of concern;
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(vi) Schedule for model development and imp~emerttation, including

integration into LTCP development consistent with. other dates required pursuant to this Consent

Decree.

b. Within sixty (60) Days after the approved Water Quality Model Flan is

fully implemented according to the schedule included therein, DELCORA shall submit to EPA

and PADEP a Water Quality Model Report for review and approval pursuant to Section VI

(Review and Approval of Submittals) which shall specifically address each item set forth in

Paragraph 15(a)(i)-(vi).

16. Existing Service Area Characterization. Not la#er than two years {24) months after

the Date of Lodging of this Consent Decree, DELCORA shall submit a characterization of the

Model Area that includes all of the information required by CSO Control Policy Section II.C.1

and associated guidance to Plaintiffs for review and approval in accordance with the

requirements of Section VI (Review and Approval of Submittals). The characterization shall

include, but not be limited to, the following:

a. DELCORA shall use the updated, calibrated, and validated H&H

Model to characterize the expected volume, frequency, and duration of CSO discharge events

from. each CSO during the Typical Year, based on an inter-event period of twelve (12) hours;

b. DELCORA shall incorporate the results of its investigation of

Sensitive Areas;

c. DELCORA shall provide a characterization of current water

quality in its Receiving Waters, based upon all available sampling data, and its efforts to identify

PoCs,
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d. The characterization. submitted pursuant. to this Paragraph shall

include the entire Model Area, including the hydrology (i.e., runof~j from and within the entire

Model Area.

17. Public Participation Plan. Within three (3) months after the Date of Lodging

hereof DELCORA shall submit to Plaintiffs for review and approval in accordance with the

requirements of Section VI (Review and Approval of Submittals) a Public Participation Plan.

This plan shall describe in detail how DELC4RA will inform and solicit input to its updated

LTCP from stakeholders, including the public, customer communities and the regulatory

agencies. The plan shall specifically describe haw the LTCP update process will: (i) address the

impact of DELCORA's CSOs and LTCP on environmental justice populations, (ii) seek input

fxom communities that may have historically borne a disproportionate share of the negative

environmental consequences resulting from DELCORA's CSOs, and (iii) ensure that the LTCP

and selected CSO Cornrol Measures will not impose a disproportionate share of negative

environmental consequences on such communities in the future. The plan shall also include a

schedule for DELCORA's implementation of the plan.

18. Financial Ca ap bility Assessment. Within nine (9) months after the Date of

Lodging hereof, DELCORA shall submit to EPA and PADEP for review and comment a draft

Financial Capability Assessment ("FCA") in accordance with CSO Control Policy Paragraph

II.C.8 and "Combined Sewer Overflows —Guidance for Financial Capability Assessment and

Schedule Development," EPA 832-B-97-004, February 1997 {"1997 FCA Guidance"), as such

guidance has been interpreted by EPA, including but not limited to information on sewer rate

setting and median household income and number of households in the entire Model Area (as

defined in Paragraph 14,b above), as well. as information on all other financial resources



available to DELCORA. Concurrent with the submission. of the LTCP, DELCORA shall submit

to Plaintiffs for review and approval in accordance with the requirements of Section VI {Review

and Approval of Submittals) a proposed final FCA, including an implementation schedule for the

proposed CSO controls in accordance with CSO Control Policy Paragraph ILG8 and the 1.997

FCA Guidance.

19. Alternatives Evaluation. DELCORA shall carry out and include in the LTCP an

Alternatives Evaluation that complies with the requirements of the CSO Control Policy Section

II.C.4, and that is consistent with EPA's "Guidance for Long-Term. Control Plan," EPA 832-$-

95-002, September 1995, The Alternatives Evaluation shall consist of: (i) a technology

scxeening process, (2) a detailed evaluation of specific CSO control alternatives, and {3)

selection of an appropriate range of proposed CSO controls to achieve compliance with the

Clean Water Act. DELCORA shall specifically evaluate the feasibility of eliminating or

relocating all CSO Outfalls that discharge to Sensitive Areas. DELCORA shall give a high

priority to the control of those CSO Outfalls that discharge to Priority Areas, and those that have

the highest frequency or greatest votume of discharge of wastewater.

a. Screening of Available CSO Control Technolo ies. DELCORA shall

assess the technical feasibility of the use of a wide range of demonstrated CSO control

technologies. DELCORA shall provide descriptions of the following types of CSO control

technology —Source Controls (e.g., Green Infrastructure), Collection System Controls, Storage

Technologies, and Treatment Technologies —and an assessment of the feasibility of applying

each technology type for long-term CSO control in the Model Area, based on existing and

anticipated future conditions affecting the Model Area. This evaluation is not intended to

consider cost or cost effectiveness, but rather to exclude control technologies that are not



technically or physically applicable to the Model Area. Partial and corr~plete separation of sewers

in each CSO Outfall tributary area, and deep tunnel storage, sha11 be considered feasible

technologies for this purpose and be carried forward for further evaluation. Expansion of the

primary and secondary capacity of the WRTP shall also be considered feasible technologies for

this purpose and be carried forward for further evaluation, as required by Section ILC.4 of the

CSO Control Policy.

b. Evaluation of CSO Controls, DELCORA sha11, based upon the results of

the CSO technology screening described in the preceding Subparagraph, and applying sound.

engineering practices and thorough knowledge of the entire Model Area, identify an

appropriately broad range of technically feasible CSO controls for detailed evaluation, regardless

of the cost of each technically feasible CSO control. As appropriate, based on the characteristics

of the entire Model Area, these CSO controls shall be CSO-specific, specific to clusters of CSOs,

and specific ~o larger portions of the Model Area, including system-wide controls (e.g., all CSOs

located along one bank of a water body). DELCORA may apply engineering judgment to limit

its evaluation of filnctionally equivalent CSO controls. Where two CSO controls provide

identical. benefits {e.g., same sized surface and near-surface storage units, or consolidated storage

that is the same volume as multiple storage units), and there is a clear cost difference between the

two options, DELCORA may evaluate the lower cost option. for each technically feasible CSO

control, DELCORA shall evaluate:

(i) the size of each CSO control necessary to reduce the number of

untreated CSOs in a Typical Year on an annual basis to the following frequencies: ~, 2, 4; 6, 8,

12;
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(ii) the estimated capital costs and annual O&M costs, expressed in

present. value, consistent, year-specific dollars, used to determine the total "project costs." as that.

term is described in Section 3.4.1 of EPA's ~`G~idance for Long Term Control Plans" (August

1995};

(iii) "knee of the curve" cost-performance for each CSO control that

will allow for the comparison of the costs to:

{i) the reduction in volume of the CSOs; and

(ii) the reduction in CSOs; and

(iii) the reduction in PoC loading from CSOs.

(iv) For CSO controls applied to CSOs tha# discharge to water bodies

for which the Demonstration Approach was determined to be appropriate, DELCORA shall utilize

its calibrated Water Quality Model to assess the impact of each. size of those controls on

compliance with water quality standards within the Typical. Year. If background sources currently

prevent compliance with the water quality standards, DELCOR~1 shall also assess the impact of

each size of the CSO controls assuming background pollutant levels are reduced such that in-

stream. concentrations upstream of the CSO Outfalls are no more than seventy-five (75) percent. of

the applicable water quality standard.

(v) For CSO controls applied to CSOs that discharge to water bodies

fox which the Presumption Approach was determined to be appropriate, DELCORA shall evaluate

a range of'sizes for those controls. If that range of alternative sizes does not specifically include the

allowed Presumption Criteria, DELCORA shall also evaluate each control alternative sized. so as

to meet the approved Presumption Criteria.



(vi) In analyzing tl~e selection of CSO controls, the LTCP shall include

an anatysis of the LTCP's impact on communities that have historically borne a disproportionate

share of the negative environmental consequences resulting from DELCORA's CSOs, including

an explanation of how the LTCP ensures that the selected Cs0 Control Measures will mitigate

those historical consequences and will not impose a disproportionate share of negative

environmental consequences on such communities in the future.

c. Green Infrastructure. DELCORA sha11 consider Green Infrastructure

{"GI") alternatives as part of the combined sewer system control alternatives under the LTCP.

The LTCP shall contain the following minimum considerations for proposing a GI alternative to

traditional controls:

(i) Identification of potential locations for GI. DELCORA shall

specifically identify potential areas within the service area that would be suitable for development

of a GI control measure. Each potential area shall be prioritized using considerations such as life-

cycle cost (including cost of long-term operation and maintenance), the ability to develop effective

GI control measures, availability of land, CSO control levels achieved, environmental and socio-

economic benefits and. impacts, and. benefits and impacts to minority and low income

neighborhoods.

(ii) Applicability and Performance Assessment. Any GI control

measure proposed shall include an applicability and performance assessment that includes

consideration of unique sewershed-specific features such as diversion structures/outfalls,

'Receiving Waters, and land uses. Information and data gathered from other existing GI control

measure studies and/or projects can inform, to the extent appropriate, applicability and

performance assessments required under this Paragraph.
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(iii) For any GI controls to be sited on private property, or operated by

an entity other than DELCORA, DELCORA shall describe how DELCORt~ will ensure the

continual operation and maintenance of such controls,

d. Selection of CSO Control Measures. DELCORA shall select CSO Control

Measures that together:

(i) Will result in its remaining CSOs complying with the CWA as

demonstrated by its water quality modeling activities (in Demonstration Approach. Receiving

Waters); and as demonstrated by its H&H Modeling activities (in Presumption Approach

Receiving Waters); and

(ii) Are technically implementable; and

(iii) Are cost effective.

e. Schedule. DELCORA shall include an expeditious schedule for

implementation of the LTCP with appropriate interim milestones, including, for each CSO

Control Measure, deadlines for:

{i) Initiating Design; and

(ii) Award of Construction Contract; and.

(iii) Placement in Operation.

f. All CSO Control Measures must be Placed in Operation as soon as

possible but in no event later than twenty (20) years after the Date of Lodging of this Consent

Decree.

20. No Feasible Alternatives Analysis. If DELCORA's proposed CSO Control

Measures include bypassing at the WRTP, DELCORA shall carry out a No Feasible Alternative
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analysis in accordance with Section IT.C.7 of the CSO Control Policy and include such analysis

in the LTCP.

21. Post Construction Monitories Plan. The LTCP shall include apost-construction

compliance monitoring plan that (i) evaluates the effectiveness of the CSO Control Measures, and

{ii) verifies DELCORA's compliance with water quality-based CWA requirements and

consistency with CSO Control Policy Paragraph II.C.9 and EPA's "CSO Post Construction

Compliance Monitoring Guidance," EPA-$33-K-1 I-40i, May 2012.

22. Revision of Operation and Maintenance Plans. The LTCP shall identify those

CSO Control Measures that require a revised operation and maintenance plan. The LTCP shall

also include a procedure for the revision and. dissemination of such plans within 60 days of the

Placement. in Operation of each such control. Each revised plan shall be consistent with

Paragraph II.C.6 of the CSO Policy and associated guidance, and shall be provided to either

Plaintiff upon request.

23. After approval of the updated LTCP and associated schedules by Plaintiffs

pursuant to Section VI (Review and Approval of Submittals), any proposal by DELCORA to

signi~eantly modify the LTCP development schedule or the content of any of the major

deliverables associated. with development of the LTCP set forth in this Consent Decree shall

follow the procedures set forth below in the Section XIX (Modification).

24. After approval of the LTCP and associated schedules by Plaintiffs pursuant to

Section VI (Review and Approval of Submittals), the approved LTCP, including each CSO

Control Measure and the post-construction compliance monitoring plan. required by Paragraph 21

hereof, shall be incorporated by reference into this Consent Decree, and DELCORA shall

immediately implement the terms of the approved LTCP, including but not limited to each CSO

25



Control Measure and the post-construction compliance monitoring plan required by Paragraph 21

i~ereof, and seek any required modifications to its NP~DES Permit.

B, NINE MINIMUM CONTROLS

25. Concurrent with the submission of the LTCP. DELCORA shall submit to

Plaintiffs for review and approval a revised and updated Nine Minimum Controls Plan ("NMC

Plan"), in accordance with Section VI (Review and Approval of Submittals). The NMC Plan

shall evaluate and document the current level of implementation of the NMCs within the

Combined Sewer System, and shall identify actions necessary for achieving compliance with the

CSO Control Policy for all NMCs and. include an implementation schedule for completing those

actions. The identified actions sha11 be in accordance with the CSO Control Policy and the

"Guidance for Nine Minimum Controls," EPA 832-13-95-003, May 1995.

26. Early Action CSO Control Measure. DELCORA shall Place in Operation a new

EPS-1 Pump Station to reduce discharges from CSO Outfalls #2, #3, #4, #5, and #7, by

December 31, 2018. DELCORA shall update its NMC Plan to reflect this Early Action CSO

Control Measure within 60 days of its Placement in Operation.

C, GENERAL COMPLIANCE

27. Effluent Limits. Subject to Paragraph 85 hereof commencing on the Day that

DELCORA signs this Consent Decree, DELCORA shall comply with all final effluent limits set

forth in the NPDES Permit, as updated or amended.

2$. DrY Weather Overflows.

a. All Dry Weather Overflows from the Collection System are prohibited.

b. DELCORA must immediately report all Dry Weather Overflows to

PADEP by telephone at 484-250-5900 and must provide written notification to PADEP and EPA

vaithin five Days of when DELCORA becomes aware of the Dry Weather Overflow.
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c. Should DELCORA detect a Dry Weather Over#low, DELCQRA shall

begin corrective action immediately. DELC4RA shall inspect the outfall(s) from w~tich the Dry

Weather Overflow occurred each subsequent Day until. the overE]ow has been eliminated.

d. DELCORA shall summarize all such Dry Weather Overflows in the Sem -

Annual Progress Report required under Section VII (Reporting}. Nothing in this Section shall

eliminate or minimize any additional notification or reporting required by the NPDES Permit.

29. Unpertnitted Discharges. All Unpermitted Discharges are prohibited.

30. Elimination of Sanitary Sewer Overflows. SSOs are prohibited.

31. Unauthorized Releases. All Unauthorized Releases from the Combined Sewer

System are prohibited.

32. Reporting Planned Changes and Non-Compliance.

a. DELCORA shall comply with the provisions of the NPDES Permit

requiring the reporting of anticipated and unanticipated non-compliance with the NPDES Permit.

b. Whenever written notice of non-compliance is required to be given to

PADEP pursuant to the NPDES Permit, DELCORA shall simultaneously notify EPA in

accordance with Section XVI (Notices and Submissions).

33. Public Notification

a. The CSO Control Measures shall include a visual notification system. The

system shall be installed at a minimum of three locations on each receiving water at public

access locations. The system shall be designed to notify the public of the occurrence of

Combined Sewer Overflows based on flow monitoring at representative CSO outfalls on each

receiving water. The system shall comprise a series of colored lights, flags or pendants that shall

operate as follows:
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{i) Calor A shall be displayed as long as flow is detected from tl~e

representative outfall;

(ii) Color B sha11 be displayed for 24 hours after flow is no longer

detected. from the representative outfall;

(iii) When operational, the visual notification system shall be described

and explained on DELCORA's web site.

b. DELCORA shall #finalize the details of tote public notification system (e.g.,

selection of representative outfalls, locations, warning devices, and. colors) for each receiving

wa#er in the final LTCP.

VI. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF SUBMITTALS

34. After review of any plan, report, schedule or other document that is required to be

submitted by DELCORA for EPA and PADEP approval (other than a request to modify this

Consent Decree submitted pursuant to Section XIX (Modification)) EPA, after consultation with

PADEP, may (a) approve the submittal, in whole or in part; (b) disapprove the submittal, in

whole or in part; (c) approve the submittal upon specified conditions, directing DELCORA to

modify its submission; or (d) any combination of the above. If EPA approves the submittal, EPA

shall notify DELCORA in writing. If the submittal is disapproved in whole or in part, or

approved with conditions, EPA shall describe the deficiencies or conditions in writing so that

DELCORA can make the required modifications and provide EPA with a modified submittal.

DELCORA may request a meeting and/or conference ca11 with EPA to discuss the deficiencies,

but no such request or meeting shall extend any deadlines set forth in this Section.

35. Within 60 Days following receipt of any notice from EPA disapproving a

submittal or directing modification of a submittal pursuant to the preceding Paragraph (or within

such longer time set forth. in the notice or agreed to by the Parties), DELCORA shall submit a



modified submittal to EPA. and PADEP for approval, subject. only to DELCORA's right to

invoke the dispute resolution procedures set forth in Section XTI (Dispute Resolution). The

modified submittal. shall correct any deficiencies identified by EPA., and conform to any

directions set forth in tote notice provided pursuant to the preceding Paragraph. If DELCORA

fails to submit a modified. document to EPA within the 60-Day period, EPA retains the right to

modify or develop any disapproved or conditionally approved portion. of the submittal..

DELCORA shall implement any such plan, report, schedule or other submittal as modified or

developed by EPA, subject only to DELCORA's right to invoke the dispute resolution

procedures set forth in Section XII (Dispute Resolution).

36. In the event that a resubmitted plan, report, schedule or other document or portion

thereof is disapproved in whole or in part or approved with conditions by EPA, EPA shall

provide DELCORA with a written notice describing the remaining deficiencies or conditions for

approval. EPA may require DELCORA to correct the deficiencies or satisfy the conditions for

approval of the submittal within a specified time frame, or EPA may modify or develop any

disapproved or conditionally approved portion of the submittal. DELCORA may request a

meeting and/or conference call with EPA to discuss the deficiencies, but no such. request or

meeting shall extend any deadlines set forth in this Section. Following receipt of a notice

requiring DELCORA to correct deficiencies or satisfy conditions for approval, DELCORA shall

submit a modified document in accordance with EPA's directions, subject. only to DELCORA's

right to invoke the dispute resolution procedures set forth in Section XII {Dispute Resolution).

37. Notwithstanding the receipt of a notice of disapproval pursuant to Paragraph 34 or

36, above, DELCORA shall proceed, if directed by EPA, to take any action. required by any non-

deficient portion of DELCORA's submission, if such action can be undertaken independent of
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the deficient portion of DELCORA's submission. Implementation of any non-deficient portion of

a submission sha11 not relieve D~ELCORA of any liability for stipulated penalties under Section

X (Stipulated Penalties) for the deficient portion(s).

38. Other than a modification of the LTCP, all plans and. studies submitted pursuant

to this Consent Decree shalt be incorporated herein as part of this Consent Decree upon approval

by EPA. A modification of the LTCP shall be incorporated into this Consent Decree only if the

Parties enter into a written agreement pursuant to Paragraph 100.

39. DELCORA shall take all lawful and appropriate actions to facilitate the

implementation of this Consent Decree, including prompt review and approval of any

appropriate and responsive bids, contracts, or other documents, and, if applicable, prompt review

and approval of any appropriate schedule of work necessary to maintain compliance with this

Consent Decree.

40. EPA agrees to use its best efforts to expeditiously review and comment on

submittals that DELCORA is required to submit to EPA for approval pursuant to this Consent

Decree. If EPA fails to take action under Paragraph. 34 with respect to a submittal or modified.

submittal, other than the LTCP or a proposal to modify this Consent Decree, within 90 Days of

receiving the submittal or modified submittal, EPA shall extend any subsequent deadlines

dependent upon approval of the submittal by the number of Days in excess of 90 that elapsed

between: (i) the date that EPA and PADEP received the submittal or modified submittal; and (ii)

the date that EPA took action under Paragraph 34. Such extension will not be effective unless

EPA grants it in writing. Defendant may invoke dispute resolution under Section XII (Dispute

Resolution) with respect to any disputes under this Paragraph.
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VII. REPORTING

A. REPORTS

41. I~ELCORA will provide to EPA copies of ail written notifications and. reports that

DELCORA is required to submit to PADEP relevant to this Consent Decree.

42. On the first Day of each Semi-Annual Period after the Date of Lodging of this

Consent Decree and continuing until termination of this Consent Decree, DELCORA will. submit

to EPA and PADEP a progress report ("Semi-Annual Progress Report") regarding the

implementation of the requirements of this Consent. Decree in the previous Semi-Annual Period.

The Semi-Annual Progress Report will include at a minimum:

a. A statement setting forth the deadlines and other terms that DELCORA

was required by this Consent Decree to meet since the date of the last Semi-Annual Progress

Report, whether and to what extent DELCORA. has rnet these requirements, and the reasons for

any noncompliance;

b. A general description of the work completed within the prior Semi-Annual

Period, and a projection of work to be performed pursuant to this Consent Decree during the next

or succeeding Semi-Annual Period;

A summary of all contacts with EPA and PADEP during the reporting

period relating to CSOs, SSOs, or implementation of this Consent Decree;

d. A statement of any exceedances of NP~ES Permit limitations; and,

A summary of at1 CSOs, SSOs, Unauthorized Releases, and Unpermitted

Discharges occurring within the Semi-Annual Period. including the actual or estimated

frequency, duration, and volume of each CSO, SSO, Unauthorized Release, and Unpermitted

Discharge.
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B. CERTIFICATION AND ADMISSIBILITY

43. Any report or plan relating to monitoring data or any representation made by

DELC~RA as to its compliance with this Consent Decree that DELCORA is required by this

Consent Decree to submit, including reports or plans, shall be signed by an official or authorized

agent of DELCORA and shalt include the following certification:

I certify under penalty of law that the document and all at#achments were
prepared under my direction. or supervision in accordance with a system designed
to assure that qualified personnel properly gathered and evaluated the information
submitted. Based on my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the system.,
or those persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the
information submitted is, to the best of my knowledge and belief; true, accurate
and complete. I am aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false
information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing
violations.

44. DELCORA shall not object to the authenticity of any report, plan, or other

submission prepared in accordance with Paragraph 43 or the information contained in said

report, plan. or submission in any proceeding to enforce this Consent Decree.

VIII. FUNDING

45. Compliance with the terms of this Consent Decree by DELCORA is not

conditioned on the receipt of federal or state grant or loan funds or upon DELCORA's financial

capabilities. In addition, DELCORA's failure to comply is not excused by the lack of federal or

state grant or loan funds, or by the processing of any applications for the same. or by

DELCORA's financial capabilities.

IX. CIVIL PENALTY

4b. DELCORA shall pay the surn of $1,375,000 (One Million Three Hundred. and

Seventy Five Thousand Dollars) ptus an additional sun for interest as explained below, as a civil

penalty, Of this sum, Defendant shall pay one half to the United States, and one half to PADEP.
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Payment. shall be within 30 Days after the Effective Date. Interest. shall accrue from the Date of

Lodging at the rate specified. in 28 U.S.C. § 1.96 i as of the Date of Lodging.

47. Defendant shall pay the civil penalty due to the United States by FedWire

Electronic Funds Transfer ("EFT") to the U.S. Department of Justice in accordance with written

instruction to be provided to DELCORA, following lodging of the Consent Decree, by the

Financial Litigation Unit of the U.S. Attorney's Office for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania,

b15 Chestnut Street, Suite 1250, Philadelphia, PA 19106, Phone: 215-861-8200. At the time of

payment, Defendant shall send a copy of the EFT authorization form and the EFT transaction

record, together with. a transmittal letter, which shall state that the payment is for the civil penalty

owed pursuant to the Consent Decree in United States, et al. v. Delaware County Regional YYater

Control Authority, and shall reference the civil action number and. DOJ case number 90-5-1-1-

1.0972, to the United States in accordance with Section XVI (Notices and Submissions) and to:

EPA Region III Docket Clerk
Office of Enforcement and Compliance Assistance (3EC00)
1.650 Arch Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103.

48. Defendant shall pay the civil penalty due to PADEP by corporate check or the like

made payable to "Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Clean Water Fund" and sent to Program

Manager, Clean Water Program, Department of Environmental Protection., Southeast Regional

Office, 2 E. Main Street, Norristown, PA 19401. If Defendant fails to tender all or any portion

of the civil penalty payment owed to the PADEP within 30 Days of the date of lodging of the

Consent Decree, interest on the unpaid amount shall accrue in accordance with the provisions of

41 Pa. C,S. § 202 from the date of original payment until all amounts owed are paid.
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X. STIPULATED PENALTIES

49. I~ELCORA shall be liable for stipulated penalties to the United States and

PADEP for violations of this Consent Becree specified below. A violation includes failing to

;perform any obligation required by the terms of this Consent Decree, including any work plan or

schedule approved under this Consent Decree, according to all applicable requirements of this

Consent Decree, and within the specified time schedules established by or approved under this

Consent Decree.

50. Late Payment of Civil Penalty. If Defendant fails to pay the civil penalty required

to be paid under Section IX of this Decree (Civil Penalty) when due, Defendant shall pay a

stipulated penalty of $1,000 per Day for each Day that the payment is late.

51. Reportin~Rectuirements. For each failure to submit a timely and adequate plan,

report, schedule, written notice, or other submission required by this Decree, except the final

LTCP, DELCORA shall pay the following stipulated penalties to Plaintiffs per violation per

Day:

Period of Noncompliance
Days 1-30
Days 31-60
Days 61-90
Days 91 and over

Penaltyper Dav per Violation
$500
$750
$1,000
$1,500

52. Failure to submit final LTCP:

Period of Noncom lip ance
Days 1-30
Days 31-60
Days 61-90
Days 91 and over

Penalty per Day per Violation
$2,000
$4,000
$6,000
$8,000

53. Compliance Milestones.

a. For each failure to comply with any deadline for Placement in Operation

of a CSO Control Measure set forth in the implementation schedule developed and approved



pursuant to the approved LTCP as required by Paragraphs 9, 19, and 24, DELCORA shall pay

the following stipulated penalties to Plaintiffs per violation per Day:

Period of Noncom Irp ~ance
Days 1-30
Days 31-6D
Days b I -90
Days 91 and over

Penal~v per Bay per Violation
$2,000
$4,000
$5,000
$6,000

b. For each failure to comply with a requirement of, or meet a deadline in,

the Nine Minimum Controls Plan pursuant to Paragraph 25 (Nine Minimum Controls),

D~LCORA shall pay the following stiipulated penalties to Plaintiffs per violation per Day:

Period of Noncompliance
Days 1-30
Days 31-60
Days 61-90
Days 91 and over

Penaltyper Day per Violation
$500
$750
$1,000
$2,000

54. General Comtaliance.

a. For each CSO that occurs more than 24 hours after precipitation, and for

any other Unpermitted Discharge in violation of its NPDES Permit, including but not limited to

each SSO and each Unauthorized Release, DELCORA shall pay the following stipulated

penalties:

(i) Within 2 years of Date of Lodging: $3,000

(ii) Between 2 years and 5 years from Date of Lodging: $5,000

(iii) More than. 5 years from Date of Lodging: $8,000

b. For each failure to comply with Paragraph 27, DELCORA shall pay the

following stipulaCed penalties to Plaintiffs:

Type of Permit Limit: Penaity per violation:
Daily or Instantaneous $1,000
Weekly $3.000
Monthly $S~ppp
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For each failure to provide telephonic notification in compliance yvit~

Paragraph 28.b, DELCORA shall pay a stipulated penalty of $2,00 per occurrence.

d. For each failure to comply with Subparagraph 28.c, DELCORA shall pay

the following stipulated penalties to Plaintiffs per violation per Day:

Period. of Noncom 1p 'ance Penalty per Day per Violation
Days 1-30 $~Sp
Days 3i-60 $1,000
Days 61-90 $2,000
Days 9 i and over $4,000

55. Access Requirements. For each failure to allow access to the WRTP and

Collection System in accordance with Section XV (Information Collection. and Retention),

below, DELCORA shall. pay stipulated penalties of $1,500 to Plaintiffs per Day.

Sb. Noncompliance with all other provisions of the Consent Decree: Stipulated

penalties shall accrue for each Day of noncompliance with any requirement not otherwise

covered by Paragraphs 50 through 55 hereof:

Period of Noncom Hance
Days 1-30
Days 31-60
Days 61-90

Penalty per Dav per Violation
$400
$600
$800

57. Stipulated penalties under this Section shall begin to accrue on the Day after

performance is due or on the Day a violation occurs, whichever is applicable, and shall continue

to accrue until performance is satisfactorily completed or until the violation ceases. Stipulated

penalties shall accrue simultaneously for separate violations of this Consent Decree.

58. Defendant shall pay stipulated penalties to the United States and. PADEP within

30 Days of a written demand by either Plaintiff. Defendant shall pay 50°/Q of the total stipulated

penalty amount due to the United States and 50% percent to PADEP. The Plaintiff making a
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demand for payment of a stipulated penalty shall simultaneously send a copy of the demand to

the other Plaintiff.

59. Each Plaintiff may, in ehe unreviewable exercise of its discretion, reduce or waive

stipulated penalties otherwise due it under this Consent Decree.

60. Stipulated penalties shall continue to accrue as provided. in Paragraph 57, during

any Dispute Resolution, but need not be paid until the following:

a. If the dispute is resolved by agreement or by a decision of EPA that is not

appealed to the Court, Defendant shall pay accrued penalties determined to be owing, together

with interest, to the United States within 30 Days of the effective date of the agreement or the

receipt of EPA's decision or order.

b. If the dispute is appealed. to the Court and the United States prevails in

whole or in part, Defendant shall. pay all accrued penalties determined by the Court to be owing,

together with interest, within 60 Days of receiving the Court's decision or order, except as

provided in Subparagraph c, below.

c. If any Party appeals the District Court's decision, Defendant sha11 pay all

accrued penalties determined to be owing, together with interest, within 15 Days of receiving the

final appellate court decision.

61. Obligations Prior to the Effective Date. Upon the Effective Date, the stipulated

penalty provisions of this Decree shall be retroactively enforceable to the date DELCORA

signed this Decree, with regard to any and all violations that have occurred after DELCORA

signed, provided that stipulated penalties that may have accrued prior to the Effective Date may

not be collected unless and until this Consent Decree is entered by the Court,
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b2. Defendant shall pay stipulated penalties owing to the United States by FedWire

Electronic Funds Transfer ("EFT") to the U.S. Departrnen~ of 3ustice in accordance with written

instruction to be provided to DELCORA, by the Financial Litigation Unit of the U.S. Attorney's

Office for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania, 235 N. Washington Ave., Suite 311, Scranton,

PA 18503, Phone: 570-348-2800. At the time of payment, Defendant shall send. a copy of the

EFT authorization form and the EFT transaction record, together with a transmittal letter, wkich

shad state that. the payment is for the stipulated penalties owed pursuant to the Consent Decree in

United States, et al. v. Delaware County Regional Water Control Authority, shall stake for which

violation{s) the penalties are being paid, and shall reference the civil action number and DOJ

case number 90-5-1-1-1.0972, to the United States in accordance with Section XVI (Notices and

Submissions) and to:

EPA Region III Docket Clerk
Office of Enforcement and Compliance Assistance (3EC00)
1650 Arch Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103.

63. Defendant shall pay stipulated penalties owing to PADEP by corporate check or

the like made payable to "Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Clean Water Fund" and sent to

Program Manager, Clean Water Program, Department of Environmental Protection, Southeast

Regional. Office, 2 E. Main Street, Norristown. PA 1.9401.. The check shall be accompanied by a

transmittal letter which. shall state that the payment is for stipulated penalties and. for which

violations) the penalties are being paid.

64. If Defendant fails to pay stipulated penalties according to the terms of this

Consent Decree, Defendant shall be liable for interest on such penalties, as provided for in 28

U.S.C. § 1961. with respect to the United States and 41 Pa. C.S. § 202 with. respect to PADEP,

accruing as of the date payment became due. Nothing in this Paragraph shall be construed to
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limit the United States or PADEP from seeking any remedy otherwise provided. by law for

Defendant's failure to pay any stipulated penalties.

65. Subject to the provisions of Section XIII (Effect of Settlement), the stipulated

penalties provided for in this Consent Decree shall be in addition to any other rights, remedies, or

sanctions available to the United States or PADEP for Defendant's violation of this Consent

Decree or applicable law. Where a violation of this Consent Decree is also a violation of the

Clean Water Act, 33 U,S.C. §§ I251-1387, or the Pennsylvania Clean Streams Law, 35 Pa. Scat.

Ann. §§ 69L1-691.1001, Defendant shall be allowed a credit, for any stipulated penalties paid,

against any statutory penalties imposed for such violation.

XI. FORCE MAJEURE

66. "Force Majeure," for purposes of this Consent Decree, is defined as any event

arising from causes beyond the control of Defendant; its agents, consultants, or contractors; or

any entity controlled by Defendant that delays or prevents the performance of any obligation

under this Consent Decree despite Defendant's best efforts to fulfill the obligation. The

requirement that Defendant exercise "best efforts to fulfill the obligation" includes using best

efforts to anticipate any potential Force Majeure and best efforts to address the effects of any

such event (a) as it is occurring and (b) after it has occurred to prevent or minimize any resulting

delay to the greatest extent possible. "Force Majeure" does not include Defendant's financial

inability to perform any obligation under this Consent Decree.

67. Any delays in implementation of this Consent Decree shall not be excused merely

because DELCORA notified EPA and/or PADEP of the anticipated delay, regardless of whether

such notification is contained in a report required under Section VII {Reporting) or any other

communication.
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68. When DELCORA knows, or should have knoum by the exercise of reasonable

diligence, of an event ghat might decay completion of any requirement of this Consent Decree,

whether or nod the event is a Force Majeure, DELCORA wi11 notify EPA and PAI~EP, in

writing, within 14 Days after I~ELCOR4 first knew, or in the exercise of reasonable diligence

under the circumstances, should have known of such event. The notice will indicate whether

~~ELCORA claims that the delay should be excused due to a Force Majeure. The notice shall

describe in detail the basis for DELCORA's contention that it experienced a Force Majeure

delay, the anticipated duration of the delay, the cause or causes of the delay, all actions taken or

to be taken to prevent or minimize the delay, and the timetable by which those measures will be

implemented. Failure to timely notify EPA and PADEP may, at EPA's option, in consultation

with PADEP, preclude DELCORA from asserting Force Majeure for the period beyond 14 Days

it took DELCORA to provide the required notice.

69. If, after consultation with PADEP, EPA finds that a delay in performance is, or

was, caused by a Force Majeure, the time for performance of the obligations under this Consent

Decree that are affected by the force majeure event will be extended by EPA for such time as is

necessary to complete those obligations. An extension of the time for performance of the

obligations affected by the force majeure event shall not, of itself, extend the time for

performance of any other obligation. EPA will notify DELCORA in writing of the length of the

extension, if any, for performance of the obligations affected by the force majeure even. If EPA

does not grant such an extension within 30 Days of receiving DELCORA's written notice of the

Force Majeure, DELCORA may consider the request for an extended. time far performance to

have been denied, and DELC4RA may invoke dispute resolution.
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70. In proceedings on any dispute regarding a delay in performance, the dispute

resolution provisions of Section XII {Ilispute Resolution) will apply, and DELC4RA will have

the burden of proving that the delay is, or was, caused by a Force Majeure and that the amount of

additional time requested is necessary to compensate for that event.

71. Compliance with a requirement of this Consent Decree shall not by itself

constitute compliance with any other requirement. An extension. of one compliance date based on

a particular event will not extend any other compliance date. DELCORA will make an individual

showing of proof regarding the cause of each delayed incremental step or other requirement for

which an extension is sought. DELCORA may petition for the extension of more than one

compliance date in a single request.

XII. DISPUTE RESOLUTION

72. Unless otherwise expressly provided for in this Consent Decree, the dispute

resolution procedures of this Section shall be the exclusive mechanism to resolve disputes arising

under or with respect to this Consent Decree.

73. Informal Dispute Resolution. Any dispute subject to Dispute Resolution under

this Consent Decree shall first be the subject of informal negotiations. The dispute shall be

considered to have arisen when Defendant sends the United States and PADEP a written "Notice

of Dispute." Such Notice of Dispute shall state clearly the matter in dispute. The period of

informal negotiations shall not exceed 30 Days from the date the dispute arises, unless that

period is modified by written agreement. If the Parties cannot resolve a dispute by informal

negotiations, then the position advanced by the United States, in consultation with PADEP, shall

be considered binding unless, within 30 Days after the conclusion of the informal negotiation

period, Defendant invokes formal dispute resolution procedures as set forth below.
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74. Formal Dispute Resolution. Defendant sha11 invoke formal dispute resolution

procedures, within the time period provided in the preceding Paragraph, by serving on the United

States and PADEP a written "Statement of Position" regarding the matter in dispute, The

Statement of Position shall include, but need not be limited to, any factual. data, analysis, or

opinion supporting Defendant's position and any supporting documentation relied upon by

Defendant..

75. The United States, in consultation with PADEP, shall. serve its Statement of

Position within 30 Days of receipt of Defendant's Statement of Position. The United States'

Statement of Position shall include, but need not be limited to, any factual data, analysis, or

opinion supporting that position and any supporting documentation relied upon by the United

States. The United. States' Statement of Position shall be binding on Defendant, unless Defendant

files a motion for judicial review of the dispute in accordance with the following Paragraph.

76. Defendant may seek judicial. review of the dispute by filing with the Court and

serving on the United States and PADEP, in accordance with Section XVI {Notices and

Submissions), a motion requesting judicial resolution of the dispute. The motion must be filed

within 30 Days of receipt of the United States' Statement of Position pursuant to the preceding

Paragraph. The motion shall contain a written statement of Defendant's position on the matter in

dispute, including any supporting factual data, analysis, opinion, or documentation, and shall. set

forth the relief requested and any schedule within which the dispute must be resolved for orderly

implementation of the Consent Decree.

77. The United States, in consultation with PADEP, shall respond to Defendant's

motion within. the time period allowed by the Local Rules of this Court, Defendant may file a

reply memorandum, to the extent permuted by the Local Rules.
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'78. Standard of Review.

a. Disputes Concerning Matters Accorded Record Review. Except as

otherwise provided in this Consent Decree, in any dispute brought under Paragraph 74 pertaining

to the adequacy or appropriateness of plans, procedures to implement plans, schedules or any

other items requiring approval by EPA and/or PADEP under this Consent Decree, and all other

disputes that are accorded review on the administrative record under applicable principles of

administrative taw, Defendant shall have the burden of demonstrating, based on the

administrative record, that the position of the United States and/or PADEP is arbitrary and

capricious or otherwise not in accordance with law.

b. Other Disputes. Except as otherwise provided in this Consent Decree, in

any other dispute brought under Paragraph 74, Defendant shall bear the burden of proving that its

actions were in compliance with this Consent Decree; or, if the dispute concerns the

interpretation of this Consent Decree, Defendant shall bear the burden of demonstrating that its

interpretation both {i) is consistent with the language of the Consent Decree, and (ii) better

furthers the objectives of the Consent Decree than the position advanced by the United States.

79. The invocation of dispute resolution procedures under this Section shall not, by

itself, extend, postpone, or affect in any way any obligation of Defendant under this Consent

Decree, unless and until final resolution of the dispute so provides. Stipulated penalties with

respect to the disputed matter shall continue to accrue from the first Day of noncompliance, but

payment shall be stayed. pending resolution of the dispute as provided in Paragraph 60. If

Defendant does not prevail on the disputed issue, stipulated penalties sha11 be assessed and paid

as provided in Section X (Stipulated Penalties}.
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XIII. EFFECT OF SETTLEMENT

80. This Consent Decree resolves the civil claims of the United States and PADEP for

the violations alleged in the Complaint through the Date of Lodging of this Consent Decree.

8 L Tl~e United States and PADEP reserve any and alI legal and equitable remedies

available to enforce the provisions of this Consent Decree, except as expressly stated in

Paragraph $0. This Consent Decree shall not be construed to limit the rights of the United States

or PADEP to obtain penalties or injunctive relief under the Act or implementing regulations, or

under other federal or state laws, regulations, or permit conditions, except as expressly specified

in Paragraph 80. The United States and PADEP further reserve all legal and equitable remedies

to address any imminen# and substantial endangerment to the public health or welfare or the

environment arising at, or posed by, the WRTP and/or the Collection System, whether related to

the violations addressed in this Consent Decree or otherwise.

82. In any subsequent administrative or judicial proceeding initiated by the United

States or PADEP for injunctive relief, civil penalties, or other appropriate relief relating to the

ND1'ES Permit (as updated or amended), the WRTP, and/or the Collection System, Defendant

shall not assert, and may not maintain, any defense or claim against Plaintiffs based upon the

principles of waiver, res judicata, collateral estoppel, issue preclusion, claim preclusion, claim-

splitting, or other defenses based upon any contention that the claims raised by the United States

or PADEP in the subsequent proceeding were or should have been brought in the instant case,

except with respect to claims that have been specifically resolved pursuant to Paragraph 80 of

this Section.

83. This Consent Decree does not Iimit or affect the rights of Defendant or of the

United States or PADEP against any third parties, not party to this Consent Decree, nor does it
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limit the rights of third parties, nat party to this Canse~t Decree, against Defendant, except as

otherwise provided by law.

84. This Consent Decree does not create rights in, or grant any cause of action to, any

third party not party to this Consent Decree.

XIV. NOT A PERMIT

85. This Consent Decree is not a permit, or a modification of any permit, under any

federal, state, or local laws or regulations. Defendant is responsible fox achieving and

maintaining complete compliance with. all applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations,

and permits; and Defendant's compliance with this Consent Decree shall be no defense to any

action. commenced by the United States or PADEP pursuant to any such laws, regulations, or

permits, except as set forth herein. The United States and PADEP do not, by their consent to the

entry of this Consent Decree, warrant or aver in any manner that Defendant's compliance with

any aspect of this Consent Decree will result in compliance with provisions of the Act, 33 U.S.C.

§§ 1.251-1387, or with any other provisions of federal, state, or local laws, regulations, or

permits.

86. This Consent Decree does not authorize or approve the construction of any

physical structure or facilities, or the modification of any existing treatment works or sewer

system.,

XV. Il'~TFORMATION COLLECTION AND RETENTION

$7. The United States and PADEP, and their representatives, contractors, consultants,

and attorneys shall have the right of entry into and upon DELCORA's WRTP and Collection

System, at all. reasonable times, upon proper presentation of credentials, to:

a. monitor the progress of activities required under this Consent Decree;
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b. verify any data or information submitted to the Un#ed States or PADEP in

accordance the terms of to this Consent Decree;

c. obtain samples and, upon request, splits of any samples taken by

DELCORA or its representatives, contractors or consultants;

d. obtain documentary evidence, including photographs and similar data;.

e. inspect and evaluate any portion or portions of the WRTP and/or the

Collection System;

f. inspect and review any records required to be kept under the terms and

conditions of the Consent Decree, DELCORA's NPDES Permit, any future modifications or

renewals thereof, and the CWA; and

g. assess DELCORA's compliance with this Consent Decree.

88. Upon request, Defendant shall provide EPA and PADEP or their authorized

representatives splits of any samples taken by Defendant. Upon request, EPA and PADEP shall

provide Defendant splits of any sample taken by EPA or PADEP.

$9. Defendant shall retain the following documents and electronically stored data for

at least five years from the date they are created:

a. All complaints received by Defendant or its contractors ox agents from any

person or entity pertaining to the matters addressed by this Consent Decree;

b. All documents required to be creaked, submitted, or maintained pursuant to

this Consent Decree: and

c. Documentation of all measures undertaken by Defendant to comply with

the terms of this Consent Decree.
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90. Defendant shall retain the following documents and electronically stored data far

at least eve years after termination of this Consent Decree:

a. All reports, plans, permits, and documents submitted to EPA or PADEP

pursuant to this Consent Deeree, including all underlying research and data;

b. All data developed by, or on behalf of,, Defendant pursuant to any post-

construction monitoring activities; and

c. All reports and data regarding water quality,

91. The information-retention requirements in this Section establish minimum.

retention periods that shall apply regardless of any contrary corporate or institutional policies or

procedures but do not excuse Defendant from any legal requirement to retain documents or data

for longer periods of time. At any time during this information-retention period, upon request by

the United States or PADEP, Defendant shall provide copies of any documents, records, or other

information required to be maintained under this Consent Decree.

92. If, after the conclusion of the information-retention periods provided in this

Section, Defendant desires to destroy any documents, records, or other information subject to the

requirements of this Section, Defendant shall first notify the United. States and PADEP at least

90 Days prior to such destruction and, upon request by the United States or PADEP, Defendant

shall deliver any such documents, records, or other information to EPA or PADEP. Defendant

may assert that certain documents, records. or other information is privileged under the attorney-

client privilege ar any other privilege recognized by federal law. If Defendant asserts such a

privilege, it shall provide the following: (1) the title of the document, record, or information; (2)

the date of the document, record, or information; {3) the name and title of each authar of the

document, record, or information.; (4j the name and title of each addressee and recipient; (5) a
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description of the subject of the document, record, or information; and {6) the privilege asserted

by Defendant. However, no final documents, records, or other information created or generated

pursuant to the requirements of this Consent Decree sha11 be withheld on grounds of privilege.

93. Defendant may also assert that information required to be provided under this

Section is protected as Confidential Business Information ("CBI") under 40 C.F.R. Part 2. As to

any information that Defendant. seeks to protect as CBI., Defendant shall follow the procedures

set forth in 40 C.F.R. Part 2.

94. This Consent. Decree in no way limits or affects any right of entry and inspection,

or any right to obtain information, held by the United States or PADEP pursuant to applicable

federal. or state laws, regulations, or permits, nor does it limit or affect any duty or obligation of

Defendant to maintain documents, records, or other information imposed by applicable federal or

sate laws, regulations, or permits.

XVI. NOTICES AND SUBMISSIONS

95. Unless otherwise specified herein, whenever notifications, submissions, or

communications are required by this Consent Decree, they shall be made in writing and

addressed as follows:

As to the United States:

Chief, Environmental Enforcement Section
Environment and Natural Resources Division
U.S. Department of Justice
P.O. Box 7611., Ben Franklin Station
Washington, D.C. 20044-7611
Re: DOJ No. 90-5-1-1-10972
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As to EPA:

Chief
NPDES Enforcement Branch {3WP42}
Water Protection Division.
t.J.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 3
1.650 Arch St.
Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029

Philip Yeany
Office of Regional Counsel {3RC20)
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 3
1650 Arch St.
Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029

As to PADEP:

Program Manager —Clean Water Program
Department of Environmental Protection
Southeast Regional Office
2 E. Main Street
Norristown, PA 19401

As to DELCORA:

ROBERT J. WILLERT
Executive Director
DELCORA.
P.O. Box 999
Chester, PA 19016

96. Any Party may. by written notice to the other Parties, change its designated notice

recipient or notice address provided above.

97. Notices submitted pursuant to this Section shall be deemed submitted upon

mailing, unless otherwise provided in this Consent Decree or by mutual agreement of the Parties

in writing.
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XVII. EFFECTIVE DATE

98. The Effective Date of this Consent Decree shall be the date upon which this

Consent Decree is approved or entered by the Court, or upon which a motion to enter this

Consent Decree is granted,. whichever comes first, as reflected on the Court's docket; provided,

however, that Defendant hereby agrees that it shall be bound to perform duties scheduled to

occur prior to the Effective Date. In the event the United States withdraws or withholds consent

to this Consent Decree before entry, ar the Court declines to enter the Consent Decree, then the

preceding requirement to perform duties scheduled to occur before the EfFective Date shall be

void.

XVIII. RETENTION OF JURISDICTION

99. The Court shall retain jurisdiction over this case until termination of this Consent

Decree, for the purpose of resolving disputes arising under this Decree or entering orders

modifying this Decree, pursuant to Sections XII (Dispute Resolution) and XIX {Modification), or

effectua#ing or enforcing compliance with the terms of this Decree.

XIX. MODIFICATION

1.00. Except as otherwise expressly set forth in this Consent Decree, the terms of this

Consent Decree, including the attached appendices and. the LTCP approved pursuant to this

Consent Decree, may be modified only by a subsequent written agreement signed by all of the

Parties or their successors in interest. Where the modification constitutes a material change to

this Consent Decree, it shall be effective only upon approval by the Court.

101. Any disputes concerning modification of this Consent Decree shall be resolved

pursuant to Section XII (Dispute Resolution), provided, however, that, instead of the burden of

proof provided by Paragraph b, the Party seeking the modification bears the burden of
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demonstrating that it is entitled to the requested modification in accordance with Federal Rule of

Civil Procedure 60(b).

XX. TERMINATIQN

1.02. After DELCORA has completed the requirements of Section V (Compliance

Measures) of this Consent Decree, including but not limited to fu11 implementation of the

selected CSO Control Measures and the post-construction compliance monitoring plan pursuant to

Paragraph 24 hereof, has thereafter maintained continuous satisfactory compliance with this

Consent Decree and its NPDES Permits for a period of one year, has complied with all other

requirements of this Consent Decree and has paid the civil penalty required under Section IX

(Civil Penalty), and any accrued stipulated penalties as required by this Consent Decree,

DELCORA may serve upon the United States and PADEP a Request for Termination. The

Request for Termination shall state that DELCORA has satisfied the requirements of Section V

of this Consent Decree and the requirements identified in this Paragraph 102, and shall include

supporting documentation sufficient to demonstrate that it has satisfied the foregoing criteria.

Provided, however, that Termination shall not be withheld as a result of de minimis effluent limit

violations at the primary WRTP outfall (Outfa11001).

103. Following receipt by the United States and PADEP of Defendant's Request for

Termination, the Parties sha11 confer informally concerning the request and any disagreement

that the Parties may have as to whether Defendant has satisfactorily complied. with the

requirements for termination of this Consent Decree. If the United States after consultation with

PADEP agrees that the Consent Decree may be terminated, the Parties shall submit, for the

Court's approval, a joint stipulation terminating the Consent Decree.

104. If the United States after consultation with PADEP does not agree that the

Consent Decree may be terminated, Defendant may invoke Dispute Resolution under Section
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XII {Dispute Resolution). However, Defendant sha11 not seek format. dispute resolution under

Paragraph 74 of any dispute regarding termination until at least 90 Days after service of its

Request for Termination..

XXI. LODGING AND OPPaRTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT

l fly. This Consent Decree will be lodged with the Court for a period of nat less than 30

Days for public notice and comment in accordance with 2$ C.F.R. § 50.7. The United States

reserves the right to withdraw or withhold its consent if the public comments regarding this

Consent Decree disclose facts or considerations which indicate that this Consent Decree is

inappropriate, improper, or inadequate. Defendant consents to entry of this Consent Decree

without further notice and agrees not to withdraw from or oppose entry of this Consent Decree

by the Court or to challenge any provision of the Consent Decree, unless the United States has

notified Defendant in writing that it no longer supports entry of the Consent Decree.

XXII. SIGNATORIES/SERVICE

106. Each undersigned representative of Defendant and PADEP and the Assistant

Attorney General for the Environment and Natural Resources Division of the Department of

Justice certifies that he or she is fully authorized to enter into the terms and conditions of this

Consent Decree and to execute and legally bind the Party he or she represents to this document.

1.07. This Consent Decree may be signed in counterparts, and its validity shall. not be

challenged on that basis. Defendant agrees to accept service of process by mail with respect to all

matters arising under or relating to this Consent Decree and to waive the formal service

requirements set. forth in Rules 4 and S of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and any

applicable Local Rules of this Court including, but not limited to, service of a summons.
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XXIII. COSTS ~F SUIT

i 08. The Parties shall bear their own costs of this ac#ion, including attorneys' fees,

except that the United States and FAI7EP shall be entitled ~a collect the costs (including

attorneys' fees) incurred in any action necessary to collect any portion of the civil penalty or any

stipulated penalties due but not paid by Defendant.

XXIV. INTEGRATION

1.09. This Consent Decree constitutes the final, complete, and exclusive agreement and

understanding among the Parties with respect to the settlement embodied in the Decree and

supersedes all prior agreements and understandings, whether oral or written, concerning the

settlement embodied herein. Other than deliverables that are subsequently submitted and

approved pursuant to this Decree, no other document, nor any representation, inducement,

agreement, understanding, or promise, constitutes any part of this Consent Decree or the

settlement it represents, nor shall it be used in construing the terms of this Consent Decree.

XXV. FINAL JUDGMENT

11.0. Upon approval and. entry of this Consent Decree by the Court, this Consent

Decree shall constitute a final judgment of the Court as to the United. States, PADEP and

Defendant. The Court finds that there is no just reason for delay and, therefore, enters this

judgment as a final judgment under Federal Rules of Civil Procedure 54 and S8.

XXVI. APPENDICES

Appendix A: Figure 1-2 to Apri12012 LTCP
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SO ORDERED THIS DAY OF , 2015

UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE
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THE UNDERSIGNED PARTIES enter into this Consent Decree in the matter of ~Inited States,
et al. v. Delaware County Regional Water Quality Control Authority.

FOR THE UNITED STATES OF' AMERICA:

~~

Dated ~ U~EN
ss' nt Attorney General
ironment and Natural Resources Division

.S. Department of Justice

Dated MARCELLO MOLLO
Senior Attorney
Environmental Enforcement Section
Environment and Natural Resources Division
U.S. Department of Justice
P.O. Box 7b11, Ben Franklin Station
UVashington, D.C. 20044
601 D Street NW
Washington, D.C. 20004
(202) 514-2757 (voice)
{202) 514-0097 (fax)
marcello.mollonusdoj.~
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THE UNDERSIGNED PARTIES enter into this Consent. Decree in the maker of ~Inited States,
et al, v. Delaware County Regional Water Quality Con1rQ1 Authority.

Date _ ' Y':~ "l HIA GILES
..ss scant Administrator
n`~'- ̀ ~ of Enforcement and Compliance Assurance
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

--_
Date S~x~AN SHII~JK1b~AN

Director
Office of Civil Enforcement
Office of Enforcement and Compliance Assurance
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Date MAID '':)I.LINS
Dire~,~ ~r, Water Enforcement Division

~. O ct of Civil Enforcement
Office of Enft~rcement and Compliance Assurance
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

~_ ~ ,

Date J A CITRON DAY
Attorney Advisor
Office of Civil Enforcement
U.S, Environrraenta! Protection Agency
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